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lPPEARANCES : 

JEFFREY A. STONE and RUSSELL BADDERS, Beggs & Lane, 

700 Blount Bui ld ing,  3 West Garden Street ,  Post O f f i ce  Box 

12950, Pensacol a, F1 or ida 32576-2950, appearing on behal f o f  

Gulf Power Company. 

V I C K I  GORDON KAUFMAN and JOHN McWHIRTER, McWhi r t e r ,  

ieeves , McGl o t h l  i n ,  Davi dson, Dekker , Kaufman , Arnol d & Steen , 

117 South Gadsden Street ,  Tal  1 ahassee, F lo r i da  32301, appearing 

3n behal f  o f  F lo r ida  Indus t r i a l  Power Users Group. 

ROGER HOWE and ROB VANDIVER, O f f i c e  o f  Pub1 i c  

:ounsel, 111 West Madison Street,  Room 812, Tal 1 ahassee, 

-1orida 32399-1400, appearing on behal f  o f  t he  Ci t izens o f  the 

State o f  F lor ida.  

ROBERT ELIAS and MARLENE STERN, FPSC Div is ion  o f  

,egal Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tal 1 ahassee, 

-1orida 32399-0870, appearing on behal f  o f  t he  Commission 

S t a f f .  
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: L e t ' s  c a l l  the  prehearing t o  

order. 

Counsel, w i l l  you read the  not ice.  

MS. STERN: By not ice  dated August 7th,  2001, t h i s  

t ime and place were se t  f o r  a prehearing conference i n  Docket 

010827-EI. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We w i l l  take appearances. 

M r .  Stone. 

MR. STONE: Je f f rey  A. Stone and Russell A. Badders 

o f  the l a w  firm Beggs and Lane from Pensacola representing Gulf 

Power Company. 

MS. KAUFMAN: V ick i  Gordon Kaufman o f  the McWhirter 

Reeves l a w  f i r m .  And I would also l i k e  t o  enter an appearance 

f o r  John McWhirter on behal f  o f  the  F lo r i da  Indus t r i a l  Power 

Users Group. 

MR. HOWE: I ' m  Roger Howe w i t h  the  Publ ic Counsel's 

3 f f i c e .  

MR. VANDIVER: Rob Vandiver w i t h  the  

3 f f i c e .  

Pub1 i c Counsel s 

MS. STERN: Marlene Stern on behal f  u f  Commission 

s t a f f .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. We w i l l  move along. Do we 

lave any pre l iminary matters t h a t  we have t o  take care o f ?  

MS. STERN: Yes, we do. Right  now the deadline f o r  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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FIPUG w i l l  be having - - l iscovery i s  set  f o r  August 29th. 

sponsoring a witness and he w i l l  not  be ava i lab le  f o r  

leposi t ions u n t i l  August 30th. Likewise, s t a f f  i s  sponsoring a 

vitness. S t a f f ' s  testimony won't be f i l e d  u n t i l  August 29th. 

So i f  anybody wants t o  depose s t a f f ' s  witness, i t  w i l l  have t o  

)e a f t e r  August 29th. And I t h i n k  - -  we l l ,  we suggest the  

li scovery dead1 i ne be extended u n t i  1 August 31st. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And t h a t  w i l l  g ive  - -  we w i l l  

lave two days f o r  deposi t ion o f  the s t a f f  witness, i f  

iecessary? 

MS. STERN: Right.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Stone, any object ion? 

MR. STONE: I have no ob jec t ion  t o  extending the  

jeadl ine f o r  the  purposes o f  those two deposit ions, bu t  I would 

lope t h a t  i t  would no t  mean extending the  deadline f o r  a l l  

i t h e r  purposes. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: My understanding i s  t h a t  t h a t  i s  

the only  basis. 

Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN : Commi ss i  oners , 

natters t h a t  we are going t o  b r i n g  up 

have some other 

may e f f e c t  t h a t  

ru l ing .  As we s i t  now we d o n ' t  have any object ion t o  the  

?xtension, however. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: A l l  r i g h t .  Mr. Howe. 

MR. HOWE: No object ion.  

we 

t ha 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. You say you have 

other matters t h a t  are going t o  e f f e c t  the r u l i n g ,  I mean, 

would i t  be be t te r  t o  take i t  up before we r u l e  on tha t?  I 

w i l l  reserve r u l i n g  on the extension. 

S t a f f ,  you don ' t  have any other prel iminary matters? 

MS. STERN: No. No, I don ' t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Ms. Kaufman, why d o n ' t  you weigh 

i n  now, i f  you would l i k e .  

MS. KAUFMAN: Well, my concerns have t o  do w i t h  the 

discovery i n  t h i s  case and how the receipt  o r  lack  thereof i s  

a f fec t i ng  my witness' a b i l i t y  t o  prepare h i s  testimony, which 

cur ren t ly  i s  supposed t o  be due on Monday, t h i s  upcoming 

Monday, August 27th. And there are two discovery matters t h a t  

are a f f e c t i n g  h i s  a b i l i t y  t o  prepare. 

The f i r s t  has t o  do w i t h  some discovery requests we 

made t o  Gulf  Power asking them t o  provide us e lec t ron ic  copies 

o f  a l l  the backup and formulas and informat ion underlying the 

spreadsheets, the  conf ident ia l  spreadsheets t h a t  you are going 

t o  consider. We made the requests t o  them, Production Request 

Number 4 on August 16th. I ta lked t o  M r .  Stone about i t  and he 

graciously turned i t  around very qu ick ly  and had the  d isk 

FedEx'd t o  my expert who received i t  l a s t  Monday. 

However, a f t e r  he reviewed it, my expert t o l d  me tha t  

basical ly the  d isk  only contains the same informat ion t h a t  i s  

3n the hard copies input i n t o  a workbook spreadsheet. And f o r  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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the most p a r t  contains no backup, no l i n k s ,  no formulas, no way 

f o r  him t o  ascertain how any o f  the  values were derived. 

As soon as he l e t  me know tha t ,  I ca l led  Mr. Stone, 

explained i t  t o  him. This was a t  the beginning o f  t h i s  week. 

He t o l d  me he was going t o  check on it. I haven't heard 

anything back. I sent another discovery request, there has 

been no response. The bottom l i n e  i s  M r .  Pol lock does not have 

the - -  
MR. STONE: Perhaps I can cu t  t o  the chase. The 

d isket te ,  a second CD was sent t o  M r .  Pollock. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Excuse me, Commissioner - - 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Hang on. F in ish  your statement 

and we w i l l  get  the - - 
MS. KAUFMAN: I would appreciate tha t .  A t  any rate,  

what I was going t o  say, here we are on Friday w i t h  my witness' 

testimony due Monday and he doesn't  have the informat ion t h a t  

the  analysis t h a t  

scovery problem 

he needs t o  prepare h i s  analysis t o  counter 

Gul f provided. That i s  one aspect o f  the d 

t h a t  we are having. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I f  you are go ng t o  move on t o  

another po in t ,  can we j u s t  have M r .  Stone - -  
MS. KAUFMAN : Sure, absol u te l  y . 
MR. STONE: The discovery request t h a t  I received 

from Ms. Kaufman, I bel ieve i t  was on Tuesday, I bel ieve the  CD 

was sent out by Federal Express t o  Mr. Pollock on Wednesday. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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He should have had i t  yesterday morning. 

It may be t h a t  the  hard copy o f  the  response t o  Ms. 

Kaufman hasn ' t  made i t  t o  her and she was n o t  aware o f  t h a t ,  

and t h a t  was the only  t h i n g  I was t r y i n g  t o  b r i n g  t o  both Ms. 

Kaufman's a t ten t i on  and t o  the Prehearing O f f i c e r ' s  a t ten t ion .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: So what you are suggesting i s  

t h a t  we may have no - - may not  have an issue? I mean, have you 

been able t o  confirm w i t h  your witness t h a t  i t  has been 

received? 

MS. KAUFMAN: I have not.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: It hasn ' t  been received o r  - -  
MS. KAUFMAN: This i s  the  f i r s t  I have heard t h a t  

anything has been sent. And even i f  he has received it, again, 

I mean, here we are Fr iday t a l k i n g  about him t r y i n g  t o  f i l e  

testimony on Monday. To do analysis under ly ing t h a t  

spreadsheet I think i s  unreasonable, and we are going t o  

request an extension o f  t ime f o r  h i s  testimony. But I have 

another discovery matter, as we1 1 . 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Moving on. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Okay. Moving on. You know t h a t  Publ ic 

Counsel sent discovery and f i l e d  a motion t o  compel which you 

granted yesterday i n  regard t o  a l o t  o f  documents t h a t  r e l a t e  

p r i m a r i l y  t o  Southern Power and t h e i r  mot ivat ion and 

i nvol vement i n  t h i  s case. 

And i f  I understand your order, and assuming Gul f i s  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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oing t o  comply w i th  it, you d i rected them t o  provide those 

ocuments by August 28th, I ' m  assuming the close o f  business, 

nd also you have some provisions i n  there f o r  i n  camera 

nspection on the same day. 

Again, assuming tha t  the documents are provided on 

ugust 28th, t h a t ' s  the day a f t e r  my witness' testimony i s  due, 

le w i l l  have no opportunity t o  review the documents o r  

ncorporate anything i n  there t h a t  might be o f  importance i n  

l i s  testimony. And, again - -  I ' m  sorry. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Go ahead. 

MS. KAUFMAN: I n  terms o f  h i s  preparation, i t  puts 

i i m  i n  an impossible s i tua t ion .  He won't be able t o  do 

lnything w i th  those documents, even assuming t h a t  I have 

Ieceived them close o f  business on Tuesday, since he w i l l  have 

ilready f i l e d  h i s  testimony Monday. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I s  there any way - -  and 

inderstand tha t ,  you know, I w i l l  say i t  again, we are moving 

in very short t ime l i n e s  and we are down t o  g i v ing  hours t o  

;pare, okay? We are not even t a l k i n g  about days a t  t h i s  po int .  

-here i s  - - you do have an opportunity t o  t r y  and address t h a t  

nformation through d i r e c t ,  and I know t h a t  t h a t  i s  not your 

r e f e r r e d  way o f  addressing it, but i t  seems t o  me t h a t  t h a t  i s  

It leas t  not  unduly burdensome, not an undue burden t o  you 

l iven the  time l i n e s  t h a t  we have got. We are f a s t  approaching 

iear i  ng . 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. KAUFMAN: Did you mean on cross? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: On cross, I ' m  sorry. I misspoke. 

To e l i c i t  o r  t o  t r y  and address t h a t  information on cross. It 

seems t o  me t h a t  t h a t  i s  the l a s t  a l t e rna t i ve  t h a t  we have got 

l e f t ,  and I would urge you t o  make the best o f  i t . I don ' t  

th ink  tha t  we can take any more extensions. I ' m  p r e t t y  ce r ta in  

tha t  we are l i k e  down t o  nothing on t h i s .  

MS. KAUFMAN: Well, Commissioner, obviously whatever 

you r u l e  i s  what i s  going t o  occur. 

t ha t  Gulf objected - -  they d i d n ' t  produce the documents, you 

found tha t  t h e i r  objections were i nva l i d ,  you have ordered them 

t o  produce the documents. They are the ones t h a t  are asking 

f o r  t h i s  rush t o  judgment on the one hand and we are a l l ,  you 

know, k i l l i n g  ourselves t o  t r y  t o  accommodate it. And on the 

other hand they are the ones t h a t  are throwing obstacles i n  the 

road path o f  the process. So I suggest t o  you t h a t  it i s  s o r t  

o f  an i r o n i c  s i t u a t i o n  we f i n d  ourselves i n .  

I would suggest t o  you 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: It i s  an i r o n i c  s i t u a t i o n  and 

please understand t h a t  I ' m  - - you sa id i t  r i g h t ,  we a l l  are 

t r y i n g  t o  k i l l  ourselves. And 1 th ink  t h a t  i t  i s  t h i s  - -  i t  i s  

the  prehearing o f f i c e r ' s  respons ib i l i t y  t o  t r y  and weigh 

everything. And one o f  the goals i s  t o  keep t h i s  th ing  moving 

on time a f t e r  a l l  the decisions t h a t  have been made consistent 

w i t h  tha t .  

And what I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  t e l l  you i s  t ha t  I t h i n k  you 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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are not  e n t i  r e l y  foreclosed from addressing whatever 

informat ion comes out o f  t h a t  i n  camera inspect ion through 

cross. And i t  seems t o  me t h a t  t h a t  i s  the  most reasonable way 

t o  approach i t  without muddying th ings up any fu r the r .  There 

i s  a number o f  issues and a number o f  t im ing  issues t h a t  are 

going t o  get thrown up here today, and we are going t o  t r y  and 

deal w i t h  them as best we can. And t h a t ' s  one o f  them and 

t h a t ' s  how I ' m  going t o  ru le .  

MS. KAUFMAN: I understand. And I appreciate it, 

:ommissioner, I j u s t  want my object ion t o  be on the  record. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I hear you. You have ample 

Dpportunity. Anything e lse o r  i s  t h a t  - - 
MS. KAUFMAN: That 's  a l l  I had i n  terms o f  the  

fi scovery d i  spute. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. M r .  Howe. 

MR. HOWE: 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. M r .  Stone, I d i d n ' t  get t o  

I do not  have any pre l iminary matters. 

you. 

MR. STONE: I d o n ' t  know i f  t h i s  i s  t he  appropriate 

)lace. I would no t  have considered i t  a p re l  minary matter, 

)u t  w i t h  regard t o  the  order t h a t  was issued yesterday, we 

ibviously are s t i l l  t r y i n g  t o  assess the  order. I understand 

there was one po in t  o f  c l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  a t  one place a t  l e a s t  and 

ierhaps others there i s  the  term business days, bu t  i n  most 

iassages i t  r e f e r s  t o  f i v e  days. And I am assuming t h a t  the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

11 

in ten t i on  o f  the prehearing o f f i c e r  was t h a t  the  response be 

d i t h i n  f i v e  actual days, not f i v e  business days. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Yes. We are shooting - -  as i t  i s  

my understanding we are shooting f o r  a 28th or 29th - -  I th ink  

tha t  i s  the  date tha t  - -  i t ' s  the  28th, so i f  we can make the 

cl a r i  f i cat ions accordi ngl y . 
MR. STONE: That i s  t he  c l a r i f i c a t i o n  I was seeking. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Calendar days. 

MR. STONE: There may be a need f o r  f u r the r  motions 

addressed t o  the  order. And i f  we had t h a t  opportuni ty,  o r  i f  

we had t o  f i l e  those other motions, I would assume t h a t  they 

would be by t h a t  same deadline. And what we would hope i s  t h a t  

i f  the need t o  f i l e  those fu r the r  motions i s  t h a t  there be an 

expedited schedule f o r  any responses t h a t  would be appropriate 

t o  those motions. And, i f  necessary, a s t a f f  recommendation i n  

an e f f o r t  t o  get t he  matter before the  Commission on the  4th.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: S t a f f .  

MS. STERN: Yes, we would. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: It sounds l i k e  i t  can probably be 

accommodated. 

MS. STERN: Yes. It sounds l i k e  i f  we are t a l k i n g  

about a motion f o r  reconsideration - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: That ' s  what i t  sounds l i k e .  

MS. STERN: - -  we would b r ing  i t  before the f u l l  

Commission on the 4th. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And i n  terms o f  response times, 

we have been working on two days, i s  t ha t  - - 
MS. STERN: I ' m  sorry,  response time. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Two days t o  respond, o r  can you 

enl ighten us what k ind  o f  response time f o r  the  other pa r t i es .  

MS. STERN: Oh, response time i f  the  other pa r t i es  

want t o  respond t o  G u l f ' s  motion? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Yes. 

MS. STERN: I bel ieve t h a t  was three days. I guess 

it depends on when Gul f  i s  going t o  f i l e .  And I t h i n k  we might 

need t o  j u s t  t h ink  now, se t  a schedule now f o r  responding t o  

the motion f o r  reconsideration regardless o f  what i s  i n  the  

orders on procedure. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Our s t a r t i n g  po in t  i s  by when 

Gul f  i s  planning on f i l i n g ,  o r  I have heard the  suggestion tha t  

a t  l eas t  by the  28th, along w i t h  whatever f i l i n g  - -  I ' m  sorry,  

Mr. E l ias ,  do you want t o  jump i n  here? 

MR. VANDIVER: I would l i k e  t o  be heard, too. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: You are next i n  l i n e ,  M r .  

Vandi ver. 

MR. VANDIVER: Great. 

MR. ELIAS: I f  i t  was f i l e d  by the 28th and the  

pa r t i es  were given two days t o  respond, tha t  would bas i ca l l y  

mean tha t  s t a f f  would have t o  have one business day t o  prepare 

a recommendation. Which we can do, we have done before. But 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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beyond t h a t ,  I assume i t  would be - - presume i t  would be 

considered by the Commission a t  the  September 4 t h  agenda 

conference. 

i s  denied, my concern i s  t h a t  the  pa r t i es  have been e f f e c t i v e l y  

denied access t o  documents t h a t  they f i r s t  requested almost a 

month ago on the day before the hearing. And I t h i n k  t h a t  

ra ises substant ia l  concerns i n  terms o f  t he  su f f i c i ency  o f  t h e  

opportuni ty t o  present evidence on those documents. 

I n  the event t h a t  the motion f o r  reconsideration 

And I don ' t  pretend t o  speak f o r  t he  pa r t i es ,  bu t  I 

am very concerned w i t h  the  impact on the a b i l i t y  t o  meet G u l f ' s  

request f o r  an expedited decis ion on the  case and a hearing on 

the  5 t h  i f  i t  chooses t o  exercise the  f u l l  panoply o f  i t s  

r i g h t s  t o  seek review o f  the  i n t e r i m  orders. 

G u l f ' s  request t o  expedite t h i s  matter, i t  i s  G u l f ' s  desire t o  

go forward on the  5th, and i t  r e a l l y  does place us i n  a very 

uncomfortable pos i t i on  i n  terms o f  being able t o  assure t h a t  

a l l  p a r t i e s  t o  the  process have the  oppor tun i ty  t o  l i t i g a t e  the  

issue f u l l y  on the  mer i ts .  

I mean, it i s  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And I would agree. I am 

concerned t h a t  there i s n ' t  going t o  be an opportuni ty.  

f i l i n g  the  motion which you have every r i g h t  t o  do, and given 

the  t ime t h a t  i s  remaining leading up t o  the  hearing i s  not  

going t o  a f f o r d  the  other pa r t i es  a meaningful - -  so, I guess 

my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  o f  t h a t  i s  t ha t ,  you know, there i s  going t o  

be some hard decis ion have t o  be made whether we are going t o  

I mean, 
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go on the 19th instead o f  the 5th.  

And I understand the pos i t ion  t h a t  i t  puts you i n  i n  

terms o f  expediting the docket, but somehow these are the hard 

choices tha t  the company i s  going t o  have t o  make on whether 

they put t h i s  i n t o  motion o r  keep i t  on an expedited schedule. 

which i s  why I c a n ' t  - -  I won't say there w i l l  be a motion t o  

reconsider, but there may be. 

E l i as '  analysis assumes t h a t  we were not successful on any such 

motion. 

MR. STONE: And those are p a r t  o f  our assessment 

I would po in t  out  t h a t  Mr. 

MR. ELIAS: That i s  t rue.  

MR. STONE: And I would urge t h a t  we a t  l eas t  leave 

Dpen the p o s s i b i l i t y  o f  a hearing on the 5th i f  there was a 

Doss ib i l i t y  t h a t  we were successful i n  any such motion. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And I th ink  t h a t  p o s s i b i l i t y  i s  

i m p l i c i t  i n  a l l  o f  our discussions. But I th ink  f o r  our 

iurposes here, we are t r y i n g  t o  deal w i th  worst-case scenarios, 

iou understand. 

MR. STONE: Yes. I j u s t  d i d n ' t  want - -  I d i d n ' t  want 

;he mere f a c t  t h a t  there was a p o s s i b i l i t y  we would f i l e  such a 

notion t o  cause us t o  lose the hearing on the 5th. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Any discussion on a motion t h a t  

IOU may f i l e  f o r  reconsideration i s  not being prejudged here i n  

my way, shape, o r  form. 

i o in t ,  but  we are - -  l e t ' s  j u s t  c l a r i f y  t h a t  we are t a l k i n g  on 

I t h i n k  i t ' s  f a i r  t o  ra ise  t h a t  
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vorst-case scenarios and i f  the reconsideration i s n ' t  granted. 

MR. STONE: Right. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Where does t h a t  - -  and I guess 

laving said tha t ,  I ' m  wondering, Counsel, where does t h a t  leave 

JS? We need t o  somehow address the other par t ies  opportunity 

to - -  
MR. ELIAS: My suggestion would be t h a t  the motion, 

i f  any, be f i l e d  by the  close o f  business on Monday. That the 

responses, i f  any, be f i l e d  by the close o f  business on 

dednesday. And then w i th  the expectation t h a t  s t a f f ,  assuming 

that we obtain the  appropriate approvals, would f i l e  a 

recommendation on Friday. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Now, t h a t  takes care o f  the 

recommendation, but  there i s  a bigger issue as t o  one way o r  

the other, however a motion would go o r  fare.  

you know, the issue t h a t  you have co r rec t l y  PO nted out, i s  

that  we are t a l k i n g  less than 24 hours t o  make possibly have 

t o  make mater ia ls avai lable t o  the other par t ies,  and I ' m  

dondering how we can address tha t .  

I th ink  we have, 

MR. ELIAS: You know, I would l i k e  t o  hear from the 

u t i l i t y  and the other par t ies.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Vandiver was wai t ing 

pat i ent l  y . 
MR. VANDIVER: I j u s t  wanted t o  ra i se  some 

fundamental f a i  rness issues. 
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: 

MR. VANDIVER: I th ink  they are, too. Gul f  Power - -  
I t h i n k  they are out there. 

I t h i n k  I f i l e d  t h i s  - -  I don ' t  have a calendar i n  f r o n t  o f  me, 

I don ' t  have these motions i n  f r o n t  o f  me, so I ' m  doing a l o t  

o f  t h i s  from memory. 

August 8 th.  

t h i n k  Gul f  Power was given a weekend and then an addi t ional  day 

t o  f i l e .  

I th ink  I f i l e d  t h i s  o r i g ina l  t h ing  

I I f i l e d  a motion t o  compel two days l a t e r .  

Now Gul f  Power i s  t a l k i n g  about a f i ve-day  per iod t o  

f i l e  poss ib ly  a motion f o r  reconsideration, and then a two-day 

window f o r  us t o  f i l e .  That i s  fundamentally un fa i r .  Our t ime 

l i n e s  are much s t r i c t e r  t o  respond t o  Gu l f  Power than Gu l f  

Power i s  ge t t ing .  That 's not  r i g h t .  The t ime l i n e  should be 

p a r a l l e l .  And I don ' t  t h ink  i t  has been proport ional  i n  the  

past, and I th ink  i t  should be f o r  t he  fu ture.  

As you po in t  out ,  we are g e t t i n g  so close t o  t h i s  

hearing we need a meaningful oppor tun i ty  t o  review these 

documents should the  Commission - -  should t h i s  order u l t ima te l y  

be upheld. We have been saying since we o r i g i n a l l y  requested 

these documents, we need these documents t o  prepare f o r  

hearing. This i s  our theory o f  t he  case. 

3ur theory o f  the  case t h a t  we look and see these documents. 

de s t i l l  don ' t  have these documents. We need t o  look a t  these 

Aocuments. We need time t o  review them when we f i n a l l y  get  

these documents. 

It i s  fundamental t o  
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Also I would po in t  out ,  as you wel l  know because you 

wrote the order, t h i s  i s  a very lengthy order. There i s  many, 

many ru l i ngs  i n  here, there i s  not  j u s t  one ru l ing i n  here. 

There are ru l i ngs  concerning work product, there are ru l i ngs  

concerning relevance, there are r u l  ings concerning p r i v i l ege .  

There are many, many d iscreet  ru l i ngs  contained w i t h i n  t h a t  

document. It i s  not going t o  be a walk i n  the  park f o r  the  

f u l l  Commission t o  review it, f o r  the  prehearing o f f i c e r  t o  

review t h a t  document on reconsideration. There i s  a l o t  o f  

s t u f f  i n  t h a t  document t o  be reviewed. 

That i s  qu i te  an undertaking t o  respond t o  i n  a 

pleading l ega l l y .  

days t o  w r i t e  a motion t o  compel. And I know i t  was qu i te  an 

undertaking t o  w r i t e  the  order f o r  you t o  do. And t h i s  i s  a 

very involved legal  undertaking, and our resources are 

stretched t o  the  l i m i t  preparing f o r  t h i s  hearing. 

It was qu i te  an undertaking t o  do i n  two 

And we are running i n t o  fundamental due process 

concerns here i n  ge t t i ng  ready f o r  hearing and t ry ing t o  get 

these documents. And I am very, very concerned about the  

p ropor t i ona l i t y  o f  the  t ime t o  prepare. And Gu l f  Power's 

l e  some k ind o f  motion i n  f i v e  

t h a t  t h i s  o f f i c e  would be given 

s fundamentally u n f a i r  and I 

And I want t o  be on the  record as 

ng t o  tha t ,  and I ' m  going t o  ob ject  t o  t h a t  u n t i l  the 

suggestion t h a t  they might f 

days and then the suggestion 

two days t o  respond t o  t h a t  

ob ject .  And i t ' s  not  f a i r .  

object  
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cows come home. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Understood, Mr. Vandiver. 

MR. VANDIVER: A l l  r i g h t .  And I d o n ' t  have the 

calendar i n  f r o n t  o f  me, and I wish I could lay i t  out chapter 

and verse f o r  you, but I t h ink  some o f  these answer and 

responses back and f o r t h  have gone on i n  the past. And I j u s t  

want t o  t r y  t o  get on a going-forward basis t h a t  we could get 

these answer and responses on a going-forward basis i n  a 

proport ional sense. And t o  the extent they are not ,  I'm going 

t o  continue t o  object ,  s i r .  Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. 

MR. STONE: Just f o r  c l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  the  motion t o  

compel f i l e d  by M r .  Vandiver, the deadline o f  two days i s  one 

t h a t  was self-imposed. The deadline I had t o  respond t o  h i s  

motion t o  compel was i n  the prehearing order. 

more time t o  prepare h i s  motion t o  compel, I s t i l l  would have 

had the same deadline imposed on me. So the al leged lack  o f  

p ropor t i ona l i t y  i n  t h a t  instance was one o f  h i s  own v o l i t i o n .  

I f  he had taken 

With regard t o  the comment about f i v e  days, yes, I 

had suggested f i v e  days f o r  f i l i n g  any motions because t h a t  was 

the deadline speci f ied i n  the order f o r  compliance, but I 

understood M r .  E l i as  t o  shorten tha t  deadline. 

l eas t  on the surface i t  does not appear proport ional ,  but  as 

Mr. Vandiver has out l ined, t h i s  i s  a very lengthy order and i t  

takes a l o t  t o  consider the options w i t h  regard t o  fu r ther  

I agree t h a t  a t  
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notions. And I suspect, and you w i l l  see evidence throughout 

the ru les,  t ha t  the i n i t i a l  pleading i s  general ly given more 

time than the responsive pleading. And so t h a t  argument about 

Droport ional i ty,  I th ink ,  i s  a l i t t l e  disingenuous. 

The scheduled proposed by M r .  E l  i as seems t o  be 

dorkable i n  leaving open the  p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  u l t imate 

zompliance w i th  t h i s  order may not be necessary i f  fu r ther  

notions are f i l e d  and ru led  upon, and t h a t  would allow us t o  

keep the  hearing date on September 5th. And i f  f o r  some reason 

such motions, i f  f i l e d ,  are not successful, then we would be 

dealing w i t h  the issue o f  what t o  do w i th  a hearing date a t  

that  po in t ,  and I t h i n k  t h a t  may be the  appropriate t ime t o  

deal w i t h  tha t  question. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Commissioner, could I be heard? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Yes. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Thank you. 

Hopefully I won't sound l i k e  a broken record here, 

but, o f  course, I want t o  j o i n  w i t h  Mr. Vandiver's objections. 

You have already ruled, but  I th ink  t h a t  throughout t h i s  

process FIPUG's due process r i g h t s  have bas i ca l l y  been trampled 

upon; us not ge t t i ng  our discovery, our witness' i n a b i l i t y  t o  

prepare h i s  testimony, not having these documents, i f  we get 

them a t  a l l ,  u n t i l  August 28th. The schedule f o r  the motion 

and the response and the  Commission's decis ion the  day before 

we are supposed t o  have the  hearing, and we a l l  have hearing 
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r e p a r a t i o n  t o  do, as w e l l ,  I t h i n k  i t  i s  j u s t  t o t a l l y  

mreasonable. And so I see t h a t  you are g e t t i n g  weary o f  t h i s ,  

md I apologize f o r  t h a t  - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: 

MS. KAUFMAN: I understand. - -  bu t  I want t o  j o i n  

v i t h  M r .  Vandiver and l e t  you know t h a t  from FIPUG's p o s i t i o n  

Ghat t h i s  s o r t  o f  a schedule i s  t o t a l l y  unworkable. Now, Mr. 

Stone, perhaps he w i l l  p reva i l  and your order w i l l  be 

iverturned and he won' t  have t o  produce the  documents, bu t  we 

w e  no t  going t o  know t h a t .  

I t ' s  p a r t  o f  the  game. 

And, again, we are a l l  going t o  be rushing t o  get 

fleady f o r  a hearing t h a t  may not  happen. And I remind you, 

lommissioner, t h a t  we are i n  t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  because o f  G u l f ' s  

pequest. So I t h i n k  i t  i s  fundamentally u n f a i r  t o  expect the 

2art ies t o  deal w i t h  these unreasonable deadlines i n  order t o  

sa t i s f y  G u l f ' s  request. And bas i ca l l y  we are i n  a s i t u a t i o n  o f  

i u l f ' s  own doing, t h a t  i s  FIPUG's pos i t ion .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. E l ias ,  can you remind me 

again what the date f o r  response you had suggested? 

MR. ELIAS: My suggestion was t h a t  i f  a motion f o r  

reconsideration was going t o  be f i l e d ,  it be f i l e d  no l a t e r  

than the close o f  business Monday, August 27th, and provided 

e i t h e r  v i a  facs imi le  o r  e l e c t r o n i c a l l y  t o  the  other pa r t i es  a t  

the same time. And t h a t  any responses t o  t h e  motion be f i l e d  

no l a t e r  than the  close o f  business Wednesday, August 29th, and 
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r o v i d e d  t o  the par t ies  e l e c t r o n i c a l l y  a t  the same time. And 

:hat s t a f f  would endeavor t o  obta in  permission t o  f i l e  a 

mecommendation by Friday so t h a t  i t  could be considered on the 

i e x t  business day, which i s  Tuesday, September 4th.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. One question. This 

zoncept o f  close o f  business, t h a t  i s  d iscret ionary so t h a t  we 

zan say noon j u s t  as wel l?  

MR. ELIAS: Yes, I ' m  j u s t  - -  yes. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. Here i s  what my preference 

Mould be. L e t ' s  not  make i t  close o f  business Monday. We are 

jo ing t o  make i t  noon on Monday f o r  the  f i l i n g  o f  the - -  i f  

there i s  t o  be a f i l i n g  f o r  a motion f o r  reconsideration. 

:lose o f  business Wednesday f o r  responses. M r .  Vandiver, I 

mow t h a t  t h a t  doesn't  g ive you t o t a l  p a r i t y  on the time, bu t  I 

th ink given the circumstances i t  seems f a i r .  You have got a 

l i t t l e  b i t  ex t ra  time. 

Secondly, i n  terms o f  the  hearing date, because t h a t  

i s  the one t h i n g  t h a t  we are not  able t o  address w i t h  the t ime 

that we have remaining. Whatever recommendation you f i l e  f o r  

the Commi ssion, assuming there i s a motion f o r  reconsi dera t i  on 

f i l e d ,  should include a recommendation on the  f i l i n g  dates t h a t  

i s  consistent w i t h  your recommendation on the motion f o r  

reconsideration, such t h a t  i f  i t  i s  t h a t  the s t a f f  i s  

recommending - - l e t ' s  say no more. 

you should take i n t o  consideration t o  also have a 

It should be consistent and 
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recommendation on whether the hearing should be held on the  5 th  

3 r  not .  I would l i k e  t o  have t h a t  issue put  up t o  the  

:ommission, as we l l .  

Mr. Vandiver, you are leaning over. 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, s i r ,  and i t  was on ly  t o  inqu i re .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Yes. 

MR. VANDIVER: Am I t o  understand t h a t  we are g e t t i n g  

no documents and no discovery dur ing the pendency o f  a l l  o f  

these motions, and t h a t  we w i l l  be going i n t o  Tuesday and, 

again, we are - -  and I ' m  asking because I ' m  preparing f o r  a 

hearing September 5th.  And, o f  course, you understand we have 

a f ue l i ng  adjustment f i l i n g  on the  agenda, we have other  

natters,  other th ings t o  do. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ : P1 ease don ' t compl i cate th ings, 

ufr. Vandi ver. 

MR. VANDIVER: But t h i s  hearing we are preparing f o r  

and we are e i t h e r  going t o  be look ing  a t  documents or we are 

not, bu t  am I t o  understand t h a t  i f  t h i s  motion i s  f i l e d  we are 

not going t o  be look ing a t  any documents and we are going t o  be 

going down one preparation path. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We 

Dpinion as the  dumbest person i n  

you reconci le the  s i t u a t i o n  tha t  

don ' t  see any way - - and, Counse 

1, here i s  t h i s  i d i o t ' s  

the room. I d o n ' t  know how 

you have j u s t  - -  I mean, I 

, feel  f ree  t o  jump i n  - -  how 

you get mater ia ls  before there i s  a vote o f  reconsideration 
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that would f ree  those mater ia ls  t o  be provided t o  the  pa r t i es .  

I j u s t  don ' t  know. I f  anybody wants t o  make any suggestions, 

now i s  the  t ime t o  do it. I ' m  not  expecting - -  I know where 

you' r e  coming from, so no need. But, you know , M r  . E l  i as , I 

have reached the  l i m i t  o f  my knowledge on t h i s .  

how t o  reconci le  tha t .  

I don ' t  know 

MR. ELIAS: And I guess, t o  use a sports analogy, the 

b a l l  i s  i n  G u l f ' s  court .  And t o  the  extent i t  chooses t o  

exercise i t s  r i g h t s  t o  seek reconsideration and wi thhold 

documents pending the u l t imate  r u l i n g  on those motions, i t  so r t  

o f  puts i n t o  p lay  the question o f  the  fa i rness o f  going forward 

on the date t h a t  i s  scheduled f o r  the hearing. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Which i s  u l t ima te l y ,  Mr. 

Vandiver, going t o  be addressed by the  f u l l  Commission, as 

wel l .  That ' s  why I have asked s t a f f  t o  make i t  p a r t  o f  a 

recommendation. 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And understanding, you know, what 

the d i f f i c u l t i e s  are and the t im ing  issues t h a t  are involved. 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, s i r .  And I simply wanted t o  

inqu i re  because I need t o  prepare and zealously represent my 

c l i e n t s  and prepare f o r  hearing. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I understand. I t ' s  a v a l i d  

question, and my answer i s  I don ' t  know any other  way t o  do i t  

but t o  have i t  decided on the  day i t  i s  decided f i n a l l y  and 
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jepending on what f i v e  Commissioners are going t o  decide about 

;his issue o f  fundamental fa i rness t h a t  you have raised. Does 

;hat - -  I ' m  hoping t h a t  takes care o f  these matters, unless 

myone has another question, then we can get i n t o  the  

rehear ing  order. 

MR. STONE: The on ly  question I would have i s  would 

ve have the leeway t o  f i l e  our motion, i f  we choose t o  f i l e  a 

notion, e lec t ron i ca l l y  o r  by fax. 

MR. ELIAS: The Commission does not  accept e lec t ron i c  

ir fax f i l i n g s .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And I don ' t  know t h a t  we have 

nade exceptions, M r  . Stone. Moving a1 ong . 
MS. STERN: Excuse me, we have one more pre l  iminary 

i s u e .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Oh, sorry.  

MS. STERN: I ' m  sor ry  we d i d n ' t  b r i ng  i t  up e a r l i e r .  

l e  are going t o  have t o  send out  a couple more in te r rogator ies  

today, and there might be some exh ib i t s  associated w i t h  those 

in ter rogator ies tha t  we might want t o  enter i n t o  the  hearing 

?ecord. Since we f i l e d  our prehearing statements and we have 

i l ready  l i s t i n g  our exh ib i t s ,  we would ask permission t o  f i l e  

i n  e x h i b i t  l a t e ,  t o  request t o  f i l e  an e x h i b i t  l a t e .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Granted. I am assuming there i s  

IO object ions.  I guess not .  

MR. STONE: Not knowing the  in te r rogatory ,  I would - -  
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I understand. I mean, I th ink  

IOU can reserve the  r i g h t  t o  the object  a t  t he  t ime t h a t  i t  i s  

f i l e d .  

Anything e l  se, Ms. Stern? 

MS. STERN: NO. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: A1 1 r i g h t .  Let  I s  move through 

the d r a f t  prehearing order.  Any changes necessary on Sections 

1 through 4? 

MS. KAUFMAN: Commissioner, I have one, and a f t e r  our 

t h a t  i s  j u s t  veighty discussion t h i s  i s  j u s t  an easy one, and 

that my name - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: That 's  what we' re  

MS. KAUFMAN: I thought you would 1 i ke 

- -  Ms. Stern, should j u s t  r e f l e c t  t h a t  my middle 

;ordon. 

MS. STERN: I ' m  sorry.  

ooking f o r .  

t h i s  one. 

name i s  

MS. KAUFMAN: No problem. I j u s t  wanted t o  get - -  do 

I get c r e d i t  f o r  t ha t?  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We a l l  know t h a t .  We knew t h a t  

one. 

Sections I through I V .  

MS. KAUFMAN: I do have a comment o r  maybe a question 

about Section 111, which deals w i th  the  conf ident ia l  

information. And, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I am supposed t o  n o t i f y  

everyone t h a t  we, FIPUG w i l l  be u t i l i z i n g  conf ident ia l  
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information i n  Mr. Po l lock 's  testimony, and I imagine i n  cross 

?xamination, as we l l .  And I suppose a t  some po in t  we are going 

:o have t o  t a l k  about how we are going t o  conduct the hearing 

i f  we do go forward. Because I personal ly have some concerns 

jbout how exact ly  t h i s  i s  going t o  work. And I not ice  t h a t  

i u l f  has some suggestions tha t  they included i n  t h e i r  other 

:ategory t h a t  we would l i k e  t o  discuss a t  t he  appropriate time. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. 

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, I would l i k e  t o  address 

jour Section I V ,  the  post - hearing procedures. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: A l l  r i g h t .  

MR. HOWE: I n  t h i s  sect ion i t  s ta tes  t h a t  apparently 

i f  the  Commission decides t h a t  i t  cannot issue a bench 

lec is ion,  t h a t  the pa r t i es  w i l l  be required t o  f i l e  a summary 

r i t h i n  two days. As I understand the  schedule r i g h t  now, on 

4ugust 31st we are going t o  f i l e  our pos i t i on  on whether the  

lommission can render a bench decision. 

Commissioner Baez, i n  t h a t  you are going t o  see us 

s ta t i ng  t h a t  t he  APA, the  uniform ru les ,  v i r t u a l l y  a l l  the 

cases t h a t  we can f i n d  t h a t  construe the  matter,  g ive pa r t i es  

e x p l i c i t  au tho r i t y  o r  the r i g h t  t o  f i l e  memoranda o f  proposed 

f ind ings and so fo r th .  

reasonab e response time. Moreover, I don ' t  t h ink  we are  even 

going t o  have a t ransc r ip t  w i t h i n  two days. 

I don ' t  be l ieve  two days would be a 

So I th ink  our pos i t i on  as you are going t o  see i n  
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-ender a bench dec 

3dministrat ive proceedings t o  have p r e f i l e d  

lad extensive discovery i n  t h i s  case, I s t i  

iench decision not on ly  i s  possible, but  i s  

2ase. And t h a t  I th ink  two days, i f  we do 

27 

on the  31st i s  going t o  be t h a t  you c a n ' t  

s ion and you have t o  a f fo rd  a reasonable 

ippor tun i ty  t o  address the  fac ts ,  and p a r t i c u l a r l y  t o  address 

;he facts  as they apply t o  the  l a w .  And I don ' t  t h ink  t h a t  i s  

iossi  b l  e w i t h i n  two days. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Commissioner Baez, I ' m  not  going t o  

;omment on the  bench decis ion question a t  t h i s  time, bu t  i f  the 

:ommission does not  make a bench decis ion we would agree t h a t  

:wo days i s  c e r t a i n l y  i n s u f f i c i e n t  t o  provide you w i t h  b r i e f s  

i n  the  important issues i n  t h i s  case. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Stone. 

MR. STONE: I am reminded t h a t  when an ind i v idua l  i s  

i n  t r i a l  f o r  h i s  l i f e  i n  a cap i ta l  case t h a t  the c los ing  

vguments a re 'usua l ly  performed a t  the  end o f  the case. They 

r e  not performed i n  wr i t i ng ,  they are not general ly given w i t h  

the benef i t  o f  a t ransc r ip t ,  and i t  would seem t o  me t h a t  two 

jays, given the  f a c t  t h a t  we take procedural steps i n  the  

testimony, we have 

1 bel ieve t h a t  a 

desirable i n  t h i s  

o t  have a bench 

i e c i  sion, i s  reasonabl e under the  c i  rcumstances given the  

3osture o f  t h i s  case. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Ms. Stern. 

MS. STERN: We would l i k e  t o  take the matter under 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

28 

idvisement and look a t  the schedule more c lose ly  a t  t h i s  po in t .  

Je need t o  work w i th  the court  repor ter  on tha t .  We a1 so - - 
I was going t o  say we seem t o  COMMISSIONER BAEZ: 

lave dropped an unintended bomb on the  cour t  repor ter .  

MS. STERN: Yes. What we were th ink ing  on the  - -  
;hat being said, I would j u s t  l i k e  t o  note t h a t  there i s  - -  the  

na jo r i t y  o f  informat ion t h a t  has been sought i n  the  testimony, 

:hat type o f  t h i n g  w i l l  have been provided, and ac tua l l y  a l o t  

if i t  already has been provided. The pa r t i es  have had a chance 

:o look a t  i t . There i s  s t i l l  more informat ion t h a t  pa r t i es  

vi11 have t o  look a t  t h a t  they haven' t  seen, bu t  t he  pa r t i es  

vi11 be able t o  walk i n t o  the  hearing knowing a l o t  o f  what 

vi11 be introduced i n t o  the record a t  t h a t  t ime. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: L e t ' s  hold t h a t  matter o f f  u n t i l  

s t a f f  can take a be t te r  look a t  the t im ing  issues. And I ' m  

issuming we can discuss t h a t  f u r the r  a t  hearing, i f  necessary. 

jnything e lse  on Section I V ?  Section V.  Section V I ,  order o f  

vitnesses. Ms. Kaufman, you are going t o  be prov id ing the 

issues t o  s t a f f ?  

MS. KAUFMAN: Yes, s i r ,  as soon as - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: As soon as you know, r i g h t .  

MS. KAUFMAN: As soon as the  testimony i s  complete. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: The s t a f f  w i l l  be doing the  same, 

E see. 

M r .  Stone, I in ter rup ted  you. 
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MR. STONE: I j u s t  pointed out t h a t  by Ms. Burke and 

ylr. Labrato i t  i s  not indicated t h a t  they are prof fered by 

i u l f ,  I ' m  sure tha t  i s  apparent t o  everyone, but  - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: 

- -  can you make the proper notat ions? 

I f  we don ' t  know t h a t  by now then 

MS. STERN: Yes, t h a t  w i l l  be corrected. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. Section V I I ,  basic 

Dositions. Mr. Stone, any changes? 

MR. STONE: None. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN: I was j u s t  going inqui re ,  since s t a f f  

i s  going t o  have a witness, are they going t o  be t e l l i n g  us 

Ahat t h e i r  pos i t i on  i s  going t o  be? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Well, I ' m  not going t o  answer f o r  

s t a f f .  My i n k l i n g  i s  t ha t  - -  
MS. STERN: The scope o f  s t a f f ' s  testimony w i l l  

depend on what i s  i n  the intervenor testimony. This prehearing 

order w i l l  be going - - w i l l  become f i n a l  and w i l l  be going out 

before s t a f f ' s  testimony i s  f i l e d .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I t h i n k  the answer t o  t h a t  i s  no. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Commissioner, I would j u s t  suggest t o  

the extent s t a f f  i s  going t o  have a witness, i t ' s  going t o  have 

t o  take pos i t ions.  Again, I t h i n k  the other pa r t i es  ought out 

t o  be informed o f  what those pos i t ions  are. And i f  t h a t  would 

mean delaying the prehearing order, so be it. 
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MS. STERN: We can delay the prehearing order.  You 

/ill be ge t t i ng  the actual testimony, though, sho r t l y .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: So, Ms. Stern, w i l l  you be able 

10 provide - - I mean, i s  there an opportuni ty t o  provide as 

) a r t  o f  the prehearing order, even i f  i t  means - - 
MS. STERN: No, I don ' t  t h ink  there i s .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: A l l  r i g h t .  We are going t o  s t i c k  

i i t h  tha t ,  Ms. Kaufman. 

i va i l ab le  f o r  s t a f f  t o  do tha t .  And you w i l l  be rece iv ing  

;estimony a f t e r  the  prehearing order i s  - -  I d o n ' t  suspect i t  

is  going t o  be much testimony. 

I don ' t  t h ink  t h a t  t he  t im ing  i s  

MS. STERN: NO. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. Section V I I I ,  Issue 1. 

Ir. Stone, any changes? 

MR. STONE: No changes. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Ms. Kaufman? 

MS. KAUFMAN: No, s i r .  

MR. HOWE: No changes. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Howe, no changes. 

Why don ' t  would do i t  t h i s  way, M r .  Stone, do you 

have any proposed changes t o  any o f  the  issues? 

MR. STONE: I have some when we get t o  Issue 13 and 

14. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Issue 2. We can go 

issue-by- issue, then. Ms. Kaufman. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

31 

MS. KAUFMAN: I have no changes. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Howe. 

MR. HOWE: No. Commissioner Baez, might I suggest 

t ha t  you announce the issue and i f  we have an object ion we w i l l  

r a i se  it. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Great, thank you. Issue 3, 4, 5, 

6 ,  7 ,  8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13. 

MR. STONE: I have one on 13. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We've got a winner. 

MR. STONE: When we had our l a s t  issue I D  conference, 

vJhich was on the 31st o f  Ju ly ,  we had - -  I thought had s e t t l e d  

3n the wording f o r  Issue 13. On the 1 s t  o f  August, Mr. 

B a l l  inger had proposed Issue 13A as an a1 t e r n a t i  ve wording t o  

13. I discussed my reasons f o r  opposing t h a t  wording w i t h  him 

and I thought we had reached an understanding o f  why the 

suggested rewording by s t a f f  was not  su i tab le,  bu t  I addressed 

tha t  i n  my prehearing statement. 

And we have stated our p o s i t i o n  on Issue 13, not t o  

Issue 13A, f o r  t h a t  reason. As noted i n  our prehearing 

statement a t  Page 11 i n  a footnote, we include the  o r i g i n a l  

vJording o f  Issue 13 as i t  was stated on Ju l y  31st, rather than 

the a l te rna t i ve  wording suggested by s t a f f  i n  a memorandum 

dated August 1s t .  We ind icated t h a t  s t a f f ' s  proposed rewording 

vJould requi re G u l f ' s  pos i t i on  t o  be no, since ce r ta in  p r i c e  

changes are contemplated by the agreement. 
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We bel ieve t h a t  i t  was the i n t e n t  o f  the par t ies  t o  

i d e n t i f y  an issue t o  s t ructure a mechanism t o  b r i ng  those 

changes when they occur t o  the Commission, and t h a t  i s  what 

Gulf  was t r y i n g  t o  s ta te  i n  i t s  pos i t ion.  And we bel ieve t h a t  

the rewording o f  the issue puts us i n  a posture where t h i s  

Commission, i f  they approve the issue, i f  they answer the issue 

i n  the a f f i rmat ive  would, i n  essence, be k i l l i n g  the contract  

since i t  does contemplate changes. 

the contract i n  i t s  e n t i r e t y  o r  would be - -  the  only  other 

a l te rna t ive  would be t o  i n t e r p r e t  such an approval t o  mean they 

blessed those p r i ce  changes without any fu r ther  review, and I 

don' t  t h ink  t h a t  was the i n t e n t  o f  the par t ies.  

It would e i t h e r  be k i l l i n g  

And so t h a t  i s  why we propose t h a t  our wording on 

Issue 13 captures be t te r  the i n t e n t  o f  the par t ies  w i t h  regard 

t o  the issue t o  present t o  the Commission, and our pos i t ion  on 

that  i s  t h a t  we intend t o  b r i ng  such p r i c e  changes t h a t  occur 

as a funct ion o f  the operation o f  the  contract t o  the 

Commission f o r  review. And t h a t  we would hope we w i l l  be able 

t o  reach a s t i pu la t i on  on t h a t  issue as i t  i s  worded. So I 

dould suggest we drop Issue 13A i n  favor o f  Issue 13. 

MS. STERN: That 's f i n e  w i t h  s t a f f .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Any other par t ies? 

MR. HOWE: No object ion.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: No objection. Ms. Kaufman? 

MS. KAUFMAN: No problem. 
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I 'm sorry? 

MS. KAUFMAN: We have no object ion.  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. Issue 13A i s  

j, t r i  cken . 
MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, when you say i t  i s  

str icken, do you mean t o  be subst i tu ted by Issue 13? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: To be subs t i tu ted  by Issue 13, 

sorry. 

MR. STONE: I f  we are ready t o  move on t o  Issue 14, 

:ommissioner - - 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I haven' t  heard from Ms. Kaufman. 

Anyone e lse on Issue 13? 

MS. KAUFMAN: No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Issue 14. 

MR. STONE: 14 and 14A are a l te rna t i ve  wording o f  the 

same issue. We had proposed Issue 14A's wording. 

-ecal l  who was the  advocate f o r  Issue 14. 

3PUG.  

it i s  j u s t  a determination f o r  the  prehearing o f f i c e r  as t o  

rhich wording should belong i n  the  document. They are, i n  

ssence, dupl icat ions o f  each other i n  terms o f  t he  e f fec t ,  

i t ' s  j u s t  a choice o f  wording. 

I do not  

I bel ieve it was 

I don ' t  be l ieve both issues need t o  be i n  the  document, 

MS. STERN: That i s  correct .  And s t a f f  has no 

reference f o r  which wording i s  used. 

;his i s  the appropriate t i m e  t o  ob ject .  

I f  the  other pa r t i es  do, 
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Well, we p re fe r  the  worrying o f  Issue 

14, bu t  I do agree tha t  the issues are dup l i ca t i ve  and you 

don ' t  need both o f  them. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Vandiver, you don ' t  have any 

preference t h a t  you want t o  s ta te? 

MR. VANDIVER: I was j u s t  going t o  say t h a t  voltage 

regulat ion should be changed t o  voltage support, but  t h a t  i s  a 

minor wording issue tha t  we can f i x  l a t e r .  

voltage support i n  the  testimony. 

MS. KAUFMAN: 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Stone. 

MR. STONE: I agree. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Make t h a t  change, voltage 

I th ink  i t ' s  

I th ink  t h a t ' s  r i g h t .  

support. 

MR. VANDIVER: But I agree they are dup l i ca t ive .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I th ink  we w i l l  take 14A. 14A 

w i l l  subs t i t u te  f o r  Issue 14. Any changes t o  the  response o r  

t o  the  pos i t ions? 

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, I don ' t  t h ink  so, bu t  I 

would l i k e  the opportuni ty t o  see i f  we need t o  blend what we 

said i n  response t o  14 i n t o  14A. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Very we l l .  You can make them 

avai lab le t o  s t a f f  i f  you do have any changes. 

17. 

Issue 15. 16. 
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MR. STONE: We noted i n  our pos i t ion  t h a t  we objected 

t o  t h i s  issue on the basis t h a t  i t  i s  not relevant t o  the 

determination pending before the  Commission. We then explained 

our pos i t ion  on the issue. We do bel ieve t h a t  t h i s  i s  an 

extraneous issue and should not be pa r t  o f  t h i s  proceeding. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Yes, Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Who supported t h i s  issue, by the 

way? 

MS. KAUFMAN: This i s  FIPUG's issue. To the  

contrary, t h i s  issue i s  not extraneous a t  a l l ,  bu t  goes t o  the 

heart o f  t h i s  transaction. And I th ink  t h a t  when the  

Commission looks a t  what i s  being requested i n  t h i s  case they 

are not on ly  looking a t  a s ing le  transaction between a u t i l i t y  

and i t s  a f f i l i a t e ,  but they are also making a p o l i c y  decision 

here i n  regard t o  these types o f  transactions. 

And i t  i s  our view t h a t  we don ' t  have an open and 

competit ive and leve l  p lay ing f i e l d ,  and t h a t  

the Commission should consider when i t  i s  dec 

not i t  wants t o  approve a t ransact ion between 

monopoly and i t s  a f f i l i a t e  when there may havl 

i s  something t h a t  

d ing whether o r  

a regulated 

1 been other more 

cos t -e f fec t i ve  a1 ternat ives out there tha t  the company d i d  not 

even bother t o  pursue. So we t h i n k  i t  i s  very relevant f o r  

your consideration. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Howe. 
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MR. HOWE: I agree w i t h  Ms. Kaufman. I n  our 

statement o f  basic pos i t ion  we addressed t h i s ,  the f a c t  t h a t  we 

th ink  the company should have c e r t a i n l y  sought the highest 

t rans fer  p r i ce  and the lowest cost PPA t h a t  might be avai lable 

out there. And so t h i s  addresses the whole overview o f  what i s  

actual 1 y happening i n  t h i  s transaction. 

MR. STONE: 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: P1 ease. 

MR. STONE: What both FIPUG and OPC have essent ia l l y  

I f  I may be heard b r i e f l y  i n  response. 

a r t i cu la ted  t o  the Commission i s  t h a t  t h e i r  ob ject ion t o  the 

pro jec t  i s  on the grounds o f  bidding and other issues, and 

those are captured i n  the other issues i n  t h i s  docket. And a l l  

I am suggesting i s  t h a t  t h i s  question o f  pub l i c  p o l i c y  i s  

something t h a t  goes beyond the scope o f  the fac ts  o f  t h i s  case 

and i s  not necessary t o  determination on the fac ts  o f  t h i s  

case. 

Everything t h a t  you heard both Ms. Kaufman and Mr. 

Howe say they can argue and have argued i n  response t o  many o f  

the other issues i n  t h i s  docket, and t h i s  issue i s  not 

necessary f o r  them t o  make those arguments. My concern i s  t h a t  

t h i s  raises some questions tha t ,  one, don ' t  touch on the 

decision before the Commission; and, two, the way the issue 

i t s e l f  i s  phrased i s  although there was a great e f f o r t  t o  t ry  

and phrase i t  i n  a fashion t h a t  was accurate and neutral ,  you 

j u s t  simply cannot do so because i t  i s  not  an issue t h a t  
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applies t o  the t ransact ion before the Commission. 

I am assuming t h a t  the phrasing o f  the issue was 

intended t o  capture the Duke/New Symrna Beach Supreme Court 

decision when i t  i s  t a l  k ing about the 1 i m i  ted  c i  rcumstances. 

And as we have indicated i n  our pos i t ion,  t h i s  t ransact ion 

f a l l s  w i t h i n  the guidel ines o f  t ha t  decision. And so, i n  

essence, what i t  appears as though FIPUG i s  t r y i n g  t o  do 

through t h i s  issue i s  t o  get the Commission t o  come up w i t h  a 

new pub l ic  po l i cy  t h a t  i s  beyond tha t  t h a t  has been announced 

as the po l i cy  o f  the s ta te  by the F lor ida Supreme Court. 

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, i f  I might. One 

addi t ional  th ing  i n  the back o f  my mind when I was th ink ing  

about t h i s  issue was i t  i s  my understanding t h a t  there i s  a 

current appeal before the  Supreme Court deal ing w i t h  F lo r ida  

Power Corporation's construct ion o f  Hines Un i t  2, and i t  i s  

being challenged by bas i ca l l y  a merchant p lan t  developer. And 

i t  i s  not un l i ke l y  t h a t  t h a t  opinion w i l l  have some bearing on 

t h i s  case. And the f a c t  t h a t  i t  i s  on appeal suggests t h a t  the  

issue i t s e l f  i s  not f u l l y  resolved here a t  the  Commission 

l eve l .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And you are looking f o r  t h i s  

issue t o  resolve it? 

MR. HOWE: I ' m  j u s t  th ink ing  there i s  something out 

there, t ha t  t h i s  i s  not a completely resolved issue r i g h t  now 

where a u t i l i t y  decides t o  b u i l d  and where concerns o f  an 
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independent power producer o r  a merchant p l  ant operator are 

introduced. I t ' s  an open question a t  the t ime, and as such i t  

deserves t o  be kept open here a t  the Commission. 

MS. STERN: S t a f f  has a comment. As f a r  as s t a f f  i s  

concerned the issue i s  not r e a l l y  d i r e c t l y  relevant t o  the 

case. 

but we do th ink  t h a t  the real  substance o f  the  issue i s  

addressed - - i s  included i n  other issues, as Gul f was saying, 

the question o f  b idding and tha t  type o f  th ing .  Also, t h i s  

question s under consideration i n  the 2020 Commission and i t  

does seem t o  be open and maybe not necessari ly, you know, 

adjudicat ng t h i s  issue i n  t h i s  proceeding might not be a good 

idea. 

I f  i t  i s  included, s t a f f  w i l l  be prepared t o  address i t , 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Howe, I was j u s t  going t o  

mention, I agree w i t h  you t h a t  t h i s  i s  an open question and 

given the f a c t  t h a t  i t  i s  being l i t i g a t e d  as wel l  would confirm 

as much. I ' m  not  sure t h a t  I am comfortable having t h i s  issue 

included i n  t h i s  docket i n  pa r t  because o f  what s t a f f  counsel 

has reminded us a l l  o f ,  t h a t  i t  i s  a question t h a t  i s  somehow 

before the study commission, and I t h i n k  a t  t h i s  po in t  we need 

t o  keep our l i n e s  less b lu r red  and as l i t t l e  b lu r red  as 

possi b l  e. 

But i t  also seems t o  me t h a t  there are - - t h a t  t h i s  

argument and t h a t  t h i s  p o l i c y  i s  present i n  every one o f  the 

issues. And I t h i n k  you have an opportuni ty t o  make t h a t  case 
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throughout the other issues. 

need t o  take t h i s  question head-on i n  t h i s ,  so I am going t o  

grant Gul f '  s proposed s t r i k i n g  o f  t h i s  i s u e .  

I ' m  no t  sure t h a t  we ac tua l l y  

MR. HOWE: I understand your r u l i n g ,  Commissioner 

Baez. Might I suggest, though, t h a t  i t  would remain a v iab le  

issue i f  we were t o  put a question mark a f t e r  the word 

a f f i l i a t e ,  and I t h i n k  you w i l l  then f i n d  you have an issue 

c l e a r l y  relevant i n  t h i s  proceeding. As a matter o f  po l i cy ,  

should a F lo r ida  regulated u t i l i t y  be allowed t o  construct  a 

power p lan t  f o r  the  bene f i t  o f  a nonregulated a f f i l i a t e ,  and 

t h a t  i s  c l e a r l y  an issue i n  t h i s  proceeding. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Stone, do you have a 

response? I ' m  not  sure tha t  i t  gives me enough comfort e i t he r ,  

but  - -  
MR. STONE: I ,  again, p o i n t  out  a l l  o f  t he  concerns 

are dea l t  w i t h  i n  other issues. The a f f i l i a t e  concerns are 

dea l t  w i th  i n  other issues. I don ' t  t h i n k  i t  i s  necessary t o  

have t h i s  issue and a l l  the other issues. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I mean, M r .  Howe, i s  there 

anything about the  Commission reaching a decis ion on the  

balance o f  t he  issues t h a t  i s  not  going t o  provide an answer Lo 

t h i s  question i n  p a r t i  cul a r ?  

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, i t  would be my fee l i ng  

t h a t  none o f  them address the po l i cy .  

very careful  t o  t r y  t o  frame th ings i n  terms o f  the fac ts  t h a t  

I mean, Gul f  has been 
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consider do you have an overarching p o l i c y  concern, t h a t  being 

can a regulated u t i l i t y  bas i ca l l y  b u i l d  a u n i t  f o r  an 

a f f i l i a t e .  

But here I t h i n k  you need t o  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And I t h ink  t h a t  the question, 

again, i s  present i n  a l l  the other issues. And i t  seems t o  me 

t h a t  whatever the decision i s  on t h i s  proposal i s  going t o  

render some k ind o f  decision based on t h a t  p o l i c y  consideration 

by the Commission. 

o r  negating any opportunity t o  have a decision by t h i s  

Commission answer t h a t  issue. I ' m  not ce r ta in  t h a t  I am 

comfortable throwing i t  out there. 

I don ' t  bel ieve t h a t  we are avoiding t h a t  

MR. HOWE: Let me j u s t  say I would l i k e  t o  see i t  

stay, but I can understand your in te rpre ta t ion .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay, thank you. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Commissioner, i f  I could j u s t  be heard. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Last words. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Thank you very much. The reason t h a t  

we proposed t h i s  issue and, o f  course, we want i t  t o  stay i n  

i t s  en t i re t y ,  but we could accept M r .  Howe's suggestion, i s  

t h a t  t h i s  i s  a matter, I believe, o f  f i r s t  impression f o r  the 

Commission and i t  i s  a p o l i c y  decision t h a t  you are going t o  be 

making, and tha t  we want i t  t o  be recognized as such and 

separately stated. Now, you do have other issues t h a t  address 

cost t ha t  address some o f  the issues t h a t  Gulf  has raised, 
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r i sks ,  benef i t s ,  and tha t  so r t  o f  th ing .  But make no mistake 

that the  Commission, we th ink ,  i s  going t o  be making a po l i cy  

statement here and we want t h a t  t o  be e x p l i c i t  and we want i t  

to be recognized i n  the context o f  the  case. And we w i l l  be 

addressing tha t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I ' m  no t  sure I t h i n k  mechanically 

the more re levant  issue i s  whether there i s  a reopener on the  

bidding ru les .  And I th ink  the  question t h a t  we have, and I 

forget  what number i t  was, but  i t  may have been 13 o r  somewhere 

i n  the  teens, you know, t h a t  more proper ly  catches the  

l i m i t e d  - - t he  funct ion t h a t  t h i s  i s  tak ing  on, o r  a t  l e a s t  how 

the company i s  proposing t h a t  t h i s  work. 

And I th ink  the question i s  very re levant  as t o  

whether should they have put i t  up t o  b i d  again. 

a change i n  the  plan t h a t  has once been approved s t a r t  the  

process a l l  over again. Now, I ' m  not  sure t h a t  we can go a t  i t  

from the  angle o f  i s  t h i s  a regulated u t i l i t y  b u i l d i n g  a p lan t  

f o r  an unregulated, because those are spec i f i c  f ac ts .  I th ink  

there i s  a more general issue here as t o  whether the  bidding 

ru les reapply o r  reattach o r  not .  

MS. KAUFMAN: And I guess you sa id I had the  l a s t  

I mean, does 

word, but I don ' t  t h ink  t h i s  i s  - -  the  b idd ing r u l e  i s  one 

question, whether o r  not they had t o  comply w i t h  t h a t  and there 

i s  obviously a d i f ference o f  opinion among the  pa r t i es .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: O f  course. 
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MS. KAUFMAN: Regardless o f  what the decis ion i s  on 

that,  I th ink  the Commission needs t o  consider the p o l i c y  

aspects even i f  you were t o  conclude t h a t  they d i d n ' t  need t o  

l i d  i t , o f  al lowing t h i s  s o r t  o f  a t ransact ion under these 

zircumstances. And as I said,  I th ink  i t  i s  one o f  f i r s t  

impression and i t  i s  an important pub l i c  p o l i c y  decision. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. We are going t o  go 

rJithout i t  t h i s  time around. Issue 18. Issues 19. 

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, I do not  have any 

comments on Issue 19, bu t  i n  our prehearing statement we raised 

two new issues which I see are no t  l i s t e d  on t h i s  document. We 

i d e n t i f i e d  two new issues and we d i d  so pursuant t o  the  order 

s t a b 1  i sh ing  procedure which s tates t h a t  any issue not  ra ised 

by a pa r t y  p r i o r  t o  the  issuance o f  the prehearing order sha l l  

be waived by t h a t  par ty .  

included two issues which we h igh l igh ted  i n  a l l  caps and bo ld  

as new issues. 

I n  our prehearing statement we 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I don ' t  have those issues before 

me. I mean, i s  there - -  
MS. STERN: I ' m  sorry ,  they were overlooked. We 

shou d discuss them now obviously. Would you l i k e  t o  read 

them? Would you l i k e  f o r  me t o  read them? 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Stone, do you have them? 

MR. STONE: 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: 

I have a copy o f  them. 

I guess I ' m  the only  one t h a t  
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doesn ' t have a copy. 

MR. HOWE : They' r e  good. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I have no doubt, M r .  Howe. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Commissioner Baez, I can g ive you my 

copy i f  you want t o  look a t  it. 

MR. VANDIVER: We can make copies. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Go o f f  the  record f o r  two 

minutes . 
( O f f  the record.) 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We w i l l  go back on the  record. 

A l l  r i g h t .  On the  issue o f  addi t ional  issues proposed by OPC, 

Mr. Stone, I guess I should s t a r t  w i t h  you. 

MR. STONE: As t o  h i s  f i r s t  o f  two issues, I don ' t  - -  
f i r s t ,  i t  i s  my pos i t i on  t h a t  the answer i s  yes. Obviously h i s  

answer i s  no, but  what I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  get t o  i s  whether the  

issue has t o  be decided i n  order t o  - - 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay, t h a t ' s  what we are 

d i  scussi ng . 
MR. STONE: And I don ' t  t h ink  you have t o  decide t h i s  

issue. 

a b inding contract .  

condi t ion precedent has f a i l e d  and i t  won' t  be a binding 

contract .  So I don ' t  see the  add i t ion  o f  t he  issue being 

necessary t o  the u l t ima te  question before the  Commission. 

Publ ic  Counsel i s  contending t h a t  a f t e r  you approve i t  we would 

I f  you approve the  contract ,  then obviously i t  w i l l  be 

I f  you don ' t  approve it, then ,,he 

I f  
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change the contract ,  we have assured the  Commission i n  other 

issues, i n  our pos i t  on on other issues t h a t  we w i l l  not .  So I 

don ' t  see any po in t  t o  having the  f i r s t  o f  t h e i r  two new 

i s u e s .  

With regard t o  the  second o f  the  two issues - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: L e t ' s  j u s t  stay on the f i r s t  

i w e .  

MR. STONE: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. Mr. Howe. 

MR. HOWE: The reason f o r  the  - -  Commission Baez, the  

reason f o r  the  issue i s  no t  whether i t  w i l l  become a contract  

once the Commission acts, the  issue i s  whether i t  i s  a contract  

going i n t o  t h i s  proceeding. We understand t h a t  i t  i s  subject 

t o  a condi t ion subsequent i n  the  sense t h a t  i t  turns on whether 

3 r  not  the company receives Commission approval here a t  t h i s  

Commission and before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 

But we t h i n k  i n  the  f i r s t  instance when you are deal ing w i t h  a 

proposed purchased power agreement, the  f i r s t  issue i s  do you 

have an agreement. 

And i n  t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  instance i t  i s  our view t h a t  

since e i t h e r  - -  c e r t a i n l y  Gul f  c u r r e n t l y  owns Smith U n i t  3. 

is enter ing i n t o  a contract  t o  purchase the  output o f  a u n i t  i t  

cur ren t ly  owns from another e n t i t y .  

s i t he r  pa r t y  - -  where e i t h e r  can avoid i t s  ob l i ga t i on  under the 

contract as i t  i s  now framed, by t h a t  I mean the PPA. 

I 

It appears t o  us t h a t  
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COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And you are t a l k i n g  about the  

t ransfer? 

MR. HOWE: Yes. By e i t h e r  re fus ing t o  negot iate the  

t ransfer o r  negot ia t ing  the t rans fe r  and f a i l i n g  t o  reach an 

3greement, t h a t  essen t ia l l y  ne i ther  pa r t y  i s  cu r ren t l y  bound t o  

any act ion.  And I t h i n k  the Commission as - -  
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Beyond the  regulatory approval 

zondition. 

MR. HOWE: Yes. And so the  issue i s  whether o r  no t  

you even have a cont ract  before you a t  t h i s  t ime i s  a question 

)f l a w  which we bel ieve i s  t o  be determined i n  the f i r s t  

instance by the Commission i t s e l f .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. 

MR. STONE: Commissioner, i f  I may. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: You may. 

MR. STONE: Our - -  and I bel ieve i t  i s  even re f l ec ted  

i n  the - -  we l l ,  i t ' s  not  re f l ec ted  i n  the  t i t l e ,  bu t  I know i t  

das re f l ec ted  i n  our p e t i t i o n .  We ta l ked  about i t  as a 

proposed purchased power agreement. We d id ,  i n  fac t ,  s ign the  

agreement, and t h a t  agreement, the signed agreement executed by 

the par t ies  w i t h  the  condi t ion,  condi t ion precedent, cond i t ion  

subsequent - - 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I t ' s  hard t o  t e l l ,  i s n ' t  it. 

MR. STONE: I t ' s  hard t o  t e l l .  But a t  t h i s  po in t  

there i s  a condi t ion t h a t  bas i ca l l y  i s  a regulatory-out  clause. 
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And t h a t  the contract w i l l  be rendered n u l l  and void i f  i t  does 

not get u l t imate approval by the regulatory bodies. The f a c t  

t ha t  i t  may not be binding a t  t h i s  i ns tan t  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  i s  

relevant t o  the determination whether t h i s  Commission wants 

approve it. 

And the reason why I say t h a t  i s  h i s  argument wou 

bas i ca l l y  say you could never approve a contract  w i t h  a 

t o  

d 

regulatory-out clause i n  it, and no par ty  would ever enter i n t o  

an agreement such as t h i s  without a regulatory-out  clause. So 

t h a t  i s  p a r t  o f  my response t o  h i s  argument. 

The other p a r t  i s  we own construction work i n  

progress. That construction work i n  progress i s  not capable o f  

generating a s ing le k i l owa t t  hour today. There are a l l  sorts 

o f  th ings t h a t  can happen on any construction pro jec t  t h a t  

could mean i t  could not f u l f i l l  i t s  intended purpose a t  some 

point .  A hurricane could come through, anything could happen. 

And so t o  ra ise  t h a t  parade o f  p o s s i b i l i t i e s  and 

saying t h a t  you don ' t  have a binding contract and say t h a t  i s  a 

fundamental interference w i th  t h i s  Commission's a b i l i t y  t o  

approve the transact ion before it, I t h i n k  r e a l l y  puts form 

over substance. 

The question before the Commission i s  i s  t h i s  

agreement w i t h  i t s  terms and condit ions which are not 

speculative, they are l a i d  out, they are f ixed,  i s  t h i s  

agreement such t h a t  the Commission i s  w i l l i n g  t o  approve i t  and 
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allow the company t o  go forward w i t h  i t s  ultimate p l a n ,  which 
is  t o  complete the project, transfer the u n i t  t o  another 
entity, take back the capacity through the purchased power 
agreement, and protect i t s  customers i n  t h a t  fashion. And this 
new issue has no bearing on t h a t  ultimate question. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Howe. 
MR. HOWE: Well, Commissioner Baez, I mean, a t  i t s  

most basic you are being asked t o  consider whether a contract 
should be approved. Obviously an in i t i a l  question is  is  there 
a contract before you. Certainly there are many contracts t h a t  
contain conditions precedent, conditions subsequent t h a t  are 
v a l i d  on their face. For example, I'm not trying t o  state the 
law, b u t ,  for example, a contract condition upon a transfer 

t h a t  will happen, for example, they are obligated t o  do i t  i n  a 
certain time. They will do i t ,  for example, a t  a price, a t  an 
appraised price t h a t  is set by an appraiser. All matters of 

definiteness. You can get a contract t h a t  way. 

I'm not trying t o  be facetious, b u t ,  for example, you 

can sign a document t h a t  looks like a contract t o  buy and sell 
the Brooklyn Bridge. You will have a buyer, you will have a 
seller,  b u t  you d o n ' t  have a contract because something i s  
missing. The seller doesn't own the bridge. The buyer can't 
buy the bridge. So sometimes things t h a t  look a l o t  like 
contracts aren't contracts. 

And a t  i t s  most fundamental, we t h i n k  the Commission 
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needs t o  ask - - t o  look  a t  t h i s  document t h a t  has been 

presented and say, are we ooking a t  a contract? Because i f  

you t h i n k  about it, what i s  going t o  come out  o f  the  back end 

o f  t h i s  proceeding i f  the  company gets what i t  i s  asking f o r  i s  

the Commission i s  saying we are going t o  approve an agreement 

t h a t  may eventuate i f  the  two pa r t i es  t o  t h i s  agreement get 

around t o  ac tua l l y  t rans fe r r i ng  the assets. But we don ' t  know 

t h a t  a t  t h i s  t ime. 

So you are going t o  be making a speculat ive decis ion 

the way t h i s  case i s  cu r ren t l y  framed. And we t h i n k  whether o r  

not you have got a cont ract  before you i s  a very fundamental 

issue t h a t  was created by the manner i n  which the  company f i l e d  

i t s  case. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Well , Mr. Howe, I ' m  not  sure a t  

t h i s  po in t  how t h i s  proposed agreement d i f f e r s  from other PPAs 

t h a t  we have had, bu t  - - you know, I t h i n k  your argument i s  

f a i r ,  as i s  M r .  Stone's. Mr. Stone, I see t h i s  as a fa i r l y  

harmless issue. And t o  the  extent t h a t  there are some 

disagreement as t o  whether i t  i s  o r  i s n ' t  a cont ract ,  I th ink  

tha t  i s  something t h a t  i s  f a i r  f o r  the Commission t o  hear and 

u l t ima te l y  decide. So I ' m  going t o  - -  we are going t o  r u l e  

t h a t  the  new issue be included. I don ' t  know what the  number 

i s  because we are going t o  have t o  renumber these issues, but  

i t  w i l l  be a legal  issue. 

Next, the  Commission's p r i o r  approval t o  t rans fe r .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

49 

MR. HOWE: I f  I might address the reason f o r  these. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Okay. 

MR. HOWE: I th ink  i f  we proceed down the t rack t h a t  

i u l f  has framed, the Commission i s  bas i ca l l y  going t o  issue an 

i rder ,  and i n  t h a t  order i t  i s  essent ia l l y  going t o  announce 

that i t ' s  the Commission's understanding t h a t  a t ransfer  w i l l  

take place. But I th ink ,  again, a very fundamental issue i s  

IOU have been presented w i t h  an announcement by the company 

that they intend t o  t rans fer  an asset t h a t  you granted a need 

jetermination on. The Governor and Cabinet have passed on t h a t  

ieed determination. I n  fac t ,  an order was issued t o  Gulf 

lower. The expectation o f  the  s tate was t h a t  Gulf Power was 

Joing t o  own and operate and ra te  base a power p lant .  

We don ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  Gulf  can j u s t  t rans fer  t ha t  p lan t  

)utside the Commission's j u r i s d i c t i o n ,  convent i t  from a r e t a i l  

asset t o  a wholesale asset without t h i s  Commission approving 

such t rans fer ,  and t h a t  i s  the reason f o r  the  issue. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Stone. 

MR. STONE: Our p e t i t i o n  asks f o r  approval and 

contemplation o f  - -  I mean, the approval o f  the  PPA c l e a r l y  

contemplates the t rans fer .  We are p u t t i n g  both issues before 

the Commission. I don ' t  t h ink  you need t o  answer t h i s  question 

since we have asked you t o  approve the t rans fer .  I don ' t  t h i n k  

you need t o  answer t h i s  question because we have brought the 

approval before you. I t  i s  not  the s i t u a t i o n  t h a t  M r .  Howe 
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presented i n  h i s  hypothetical back on June 25th, which was 

answered, do we even have t o  come t o  you f o r  approval. I f  we 

had t ransferred i t  without having a PPA, i f  we had never come 

before you then t h a t  question might be re levant .  But because 

we have come before you, we have asked f o r  b less ing o f  t he  PPA 

which contemplates the  t rans fe r ,  we are asking f o r  blessing o f  

the t rans fer ,  too, since you can ' t  have one wi thout  the  other.  

And so the  need t o  add t h i s  issue i s  r e a l l y  

superseded by the  f a c t  o f  the very r e l i e f  the company has asked 

f o r  i n  t h i s  case, and I would suggest i t  needs t o  be dropped t o  

avoid confusion i n  the  u l t imate  determination t o  be made by 

t h i s  Commission. 

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, may I suggest t h a t  what 

Mr. Stone j u s t  sa id  suggests t h a t  the  issue should be rephrased 

t o  say should the  Commission approve Gul f  Power's t rans fe r  o f  

Smith Un i t  3 t o  Southern Power. You w i l l  get t o  exac t ly  the  

issue tha t  he was describing. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Stone. 

MR. STONE: My concern i s  you could approve the  

t ransfer  and not approve the  PPA and the  t rans fe r  won' t  take 

place. Or you could approve the t rans fe r  - - o r  you could 

approve the PPA and not  approve the  t rans fer ,  i n  which case the 

PPA won't take place. I t ' s  a l l  caught up i n  the  same decision, 

you don ' t  need t o  have two d i f f e r e n t  decision po in ts .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I would l i k e  t o  hear from s t a f f  
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i n  t h i s .  

MS. STERN: It i s  s t a f f ' s  pos i t i on  t h a t  the issue 

should be i n .  It i s  relevant t o  the  decis ion being made t o  

approval o f  t he  purchased power agreement. There are other 

issues tha t  address, you know, the  t rans fe r .  I t ' s  a legal  

issue. It has been a rea l  - -  the subtext o f  t h i s  issue has 

3een here i n  t h i s  docket f o r  a long t ime and i t  should be 

addressed head-on. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Very we l l .  The issue i s  

accepted. Okay. 

MR. STONE: Commissioner Baez, c l e a r l y  we have not  

had an opportuni ty t o  take a pos i t i on  on the  issues. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And you can provide those t o  

s t a f f .  I ' m  no t  sure - - we need t o  have them before you are 

issu ing the order, so I ' m  not  sure what the  t im ing  i s  on tha t ,  

Ms. Stern, bu t  you a l l  can get together as t o  when t o  provide 

the pos i t ions.  

MR. STONE: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I guess t h a t  goes f o r  FIPUG, as 

we l l .  

MS. KAUFMAN: Yes. We w i l l  provide our pos i t ions  on 

tha t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Section I X .  I know Ms. Kaufman 

had some questions. Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Wel l ,  my questions a r e n ' t  so much 
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d i rected t o  Section I X ,  but  more general ly I have some concerns 

as t o  how we a re  ac tua l l y  going t o  conduct the  hearing. And, 

f o r  example, my witness I am assuming w i l l  have in format ion i n  

h i s  testimony t h a t  re la tes  not  on ly  t o  the  l ack  o f  

cost-ef fect iveness o f  t h i s  proposal i n  which he w i l l  have done 

ca lcu lat ions t h a t  w i l l ,  i n  our view, demonstrate t h a t  G u l f ' s  

spreadsheets are i n  e r ro r .  But i n  add i t  on I imagine, o r  I am 

contemplating t h a t  he w i l l  be discussing ce r ta in  terms and 

condi t ions i n  the contract  t h a t  Gul f  has suggested are 

con f iden t ia l .  

And I have t o  admit t o  you t h a t  I have never been i n  

a hearing here under these s o r t  o f  circumstances. And I was 

j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  v isua l i ze  how the  hearing w i l l  be conducted. 

F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  my witness' summary and whatnot from the stand as 

we1 1 as how we w i l l  cross-examine Gul f s witnesses. And I 

recognize and have been i n  proceedings where witnesses have 

been d i rec ted  t o  look a t  t h i s  l i n e  and t h i s  number and not  t o  

verbal ize the  number. But I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  i s  t he  on ly  s o r t  

o f  con f ident ia l  informat ion we are going t o  be deal ing w i t h  

here. We are going t o  be asking and discussing clauses i n  the  

contract  and what r i g h t s  and respons ib i l i t i es  they may o r  may 

not  convey. So, you know, I don ' t  have a so lu t ion ,  I am j u s t  

ra i s ing  t h a t  because I was t r y i n g  t o  f i gu re  ou t  how we would do 

it. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: And as I reca l l  we had discussed 
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t h i s  issue ear ly  on, I th ink ,  a t  the f i r s t  o f  these several 

neetings t h a t  we have had since. And Mr. E l i as  I th ink  had 

nentioned t h a t  there i s  - -  unfortunately, I t h i n k  Mr. E l i a s  has 

been involved i n  a hearing. 

dorth i n  here and maybe we can - - 
I f  you want t o  put  your two cents 

MR. ELIAS: I t ' s  worth about t h a t  much. I would 

suggest three approaches. The f i r s t  i s  t o  the extent t h a t  

there are numbers t h a t  are derived from o r  provide a comparison 

to  conf ident ia l  information, t h a t  those be worked up ahead o f  

time and i d e n t i f i e d  as a conf ident ia l  exh ib i t .  Then t o  the 

extent t h a t  a question o r  a response would e l i c i t  conf ident ia l  

information, t h a t  t h a t  also e i t h e r  be handwritten a t  the  

hearing o r  t o  the extent possible prepared i n  advance, marked 

as an e x h i b i t  and shared w i t h  a l l  the par t ies  and the  

Commissioners. 

MS. KAUFMAN: I j u s t  want t o  ask; so, f o r  example, 

Yr. Howe w i l l  be on the stand. We would want t o  ask him about 

a pa r t i cu la r  clause i n  the contract  t h a t  Gulf  has designated as 

conf ident ia l .  What you are suggesting i s  we would w r i t e  t h a t  

question out, show i t  t o  him and he would w r i t e  h i s  answer out, 

as wel l?  

MR. ELIAS: I f  the question o r  the answer would 

e l i c i t ,  o f  necessity, conf ident ia l  information, i f  there i s  no 

way t o  phrase the question o r  the  response where conf ident ia l  

information would not be disclosed, then t h a t  i s  my suggestion 
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f o r  addressing it. I have seen the procedure used i n  the  past. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Mr. Vandi ver. 

MR. VANDIVER: Just  t a l k i n g  and t r y i n g  t o  understand, 

doul d then copies be provided t o  each Commissioner, a1 1 

counsel , and a1 1 involved s t a f f  simultaneously? 

MR. ELIAS: Yes. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Well, t h a t  takes a long time, doesn't  

it? 

MR. VANDIVER: That seems l i k e  a very cumbersome 

process f o r  a one-day hearing. And i n  the  g ive and take o f  

cross examination - -  I ' m  j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  work through the  

p r a c t i c a l i t i e s  o f  it. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I don ' t  t h i n k  we are going t o  

reach any answers as t o  p r a c t i c a l i t i e s  here and now. I t h i n k  

t h i s  i s  something t h a t  should be the  subject  o f  conversation - -  
MR. VANDIVER: Maybe counsel could meet a t  some 

po in t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: - -  a t  some p o i n t  and t r y  t o  work 

out some workable way o f  doing t h i s .  And I do r e a l i z e  t h a t  i t  

i s  going t o  take a l o t  o f  e f f o r t .  

MR. VANDIVER: And I ' m  concerned about reveal i n g  

t r i a l  s t ra tegy i n  advance. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I c a n ' t  p ro tec t  you from t h a t ,  

s i r .  You're on your own on t h a t  one. 

MR. VANDIVER: But there i s  a process concern, bu t  we 
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dl t r y  t o  work through t h a t ,  I guess. M r .  Howe might have 

some thoughts on tha t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I guess, you know, i f  you are 

going t o  give up t r i a l  s t rategy, I c a n ' t  jump over the bench 

w d  put my hand over your mouth. You have got t o  f i gu re  out  

some way not t o  do it. Mr. Howe, I ' m  sorry.  

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, I am reminded t h a t  

there i s  a provis ion,  I ' m  sure most o f  us are we l l  aware o f  i n  

the Rules o f  C i v i l  Procedure t h a t  under discovery you can take 

depositions upon ora l  examination o r  you can take deposit ions 

upon submitted w r i t t e n  questions. I have never done i t  under 

d r i t t e n  submitted questions, and I don ' t  t h i n k  I ever w i l l .  

Because t o  be honest w i t h  you, I don ' t  work w i t h  a s c r i p t .  

don ' t  t h ink  anybody has ever seen me work from a l i s t  o f  

questions. 

I 

And I t r y  t o  t a i l o r  my - - my view has always been you 

can only  put the f i r s t  question i n  w r i t i n g ,  because a f t e r  t h a t  

your second question i s  going t o  depend upon the  answer you get  

t o  the  f i r s t ,  and so f o r t h  down the l i n e .  We cannot be pu t  i n  

a pos i t i on  where, f o r  example, i f  we were t o  d r a f t  any 

questions i n  advance i t  would preclude us from asking any 

others t h a t  would be ind ica ted  by answers we got from the  

witness . 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I th ink  t h a t  i s  something - -  I ' m  

being honest w i th  you, I th ink  tha t  i s  something you a l l  are 
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Joing t o  have t o  t h i n k  about and discuss and f i gu re  out some 

dorkable ground ru les  f o r  it. 

to lapse back i n t o  a cumbersome s i tua t i on .  And i f  t h a t  i s  the  

mly  way t h a t  you have avai lab le t o  you t o  get questions and 

mswers, you know, i f  i t  i s  the on ly  a l t e rna t i ve  l e f t ,  then I 

suggest, you know, you have got t o  decide whether you are going 

to use i t  o r  no t .  

I mean, otherwise we are going 

MR. HOWE: I should make you aware t h a t  the  view o f  

the members o f  the  o f f i c e  I work f o r  t h a t  - -  and I have used 

th i s  phrase before - - we consider ourselves pub1 i c  employees 

jo ing a pub l i c  j o b  i n  a pub l i c  place. As such, i f  I d r a f t  

questions, a l l  r i g h t ,  i f  a repor ter  wanted t o  see those 

questions I draf ted,  I might have t o  g ive  them t o  him. Those 

night be pub l i c  records immediately upon my creat ion o f  them. 

I ' m  not  going t o  here s ta te  t h a t  anything t h a t  I generate might 

be outside the  pub l i c  eye a t  t h i s  t ime, I j u s t  can ' t  do tha t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Again, I urge counsel t o  get 

together on t h i s .  

question. I w i l l  be curious t o  see how everyone can deal w i th  

it. Ms. Kaufman. 

I mean, you have ra ised an i n te res t i ng  

MS. KAUFMAN: I don ' t  have any fu r the r  suggestions a t  

t h i s  po in t .  

w r i t i ng -ou t  process, as Mr. Howe described, you know, again, 

you don ' t  w r i t e  your questions out i n  advance, I th ink  we are 

going t o  need - -  I don ' t  t h ink  a day i s  going t o  be s u f f i c i e n t  

I j u s t  t h ink  tha t  i f  we go through t h i s  
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3ecause the major i t y  o f  the informat ion and the documents i n  

t h i s  case Gulf  claims are conf ident ia l ,  and I th ink  many o f  us 

i n  t h i s  room sat  through the depositions o f  the three Gulf 

ditnesses t h a t  took, I don ' t  know, longer than an e n t i r e  day. 

That does not take i n t o  consideration my witness. So, a t  t h i s  

point  I don ' t  have the answers f o r  you, I ' m  j u s t  r a i s i n g  t h a t  

as a grave concern on our pa r t .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Thank you. Mr. Stone. 

MR. STONE: Commissioner Baez, I feel  compelled t o  

respond t o  something M r .  Howe j u s t  said. M r .  Howe has been 

given access t o  conf dent ia l  documents on ly  under the ru les  o f  

t h i s  Commission t h a t  al low him access t o  conf ident ia l  

information. I f  the pos i t ion  t h a t  he j u s t  stated, i f  I 

i n t e r p r e t  it l i t e r a l l y ,  t h a t  means t h a t  any notes he has taken 

from those conf ident ia l  documents are not  protected. 

I do not  bel ieve t h a t  was the  i n ten t i on  o f  the  

Commission, I do not bel ieve t h a t  was the  i n ten t i on  o f  the  

s tatute.  He raised the same concern a t  the outset o f  our 

depositions, and t h a t  was what l e d  t o  a delay i n  the 

commencement o f  those depositions whi le  an ore tenus motion f o r  

protect ive order was presented t o  you and you ru led upon i t . 

I guess a t  the very minimum I need t o  renew t h a t  

motion f o r  protect ive order and ask t h a t  i t  be expanded t o  

include any notes o r  questions t h a t  he might prepare based on 

the conf ident ia l  information he has had access t o  only by 
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i i r t u e  o f  the ru les  o f  t h i s  Commission. And t h a t  such notes, 

ihoughts, and impressions would a1 so not  cons t i t u te  pub1 i c  

Becords dur ing the pendency o f  t h i s  proceeding. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We w i l l  take t h a t  motion under 

idvisement. And I would l i k e  t o  meet w i t h  counsel a f t e r  the  

rehear ing  i s  closed. 

MR. HOWE: Commissioner Baez, I ' m  a f r a i d  I must - -  I 
;aid nothing about any notes o r  anything. 

in a pos i t ion ,  those would then be my own work product a t  t h a t  

; he .  I am j u s t  announcing t h a t  f o r  obvious reasons. I have 

lever suggested t h a t  anything t h a t  t h i s  Commission has issued 

in the  way o f  a c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y  order has i n  any way been 

:ompromised by anybody i n  our o f f i c e .  

I sa id  i f  I am put  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Understood, M r .  Howe. 

MR. STONE: But he d i d  say t h a t  any questions he 

irepared from conf ident ia l  informat ion t h a t  may have 

:onf ident ia l  informat ion,  he may be compelled t o  g ive  them t o  

;he press. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: M r .  Stone, you have made your 

I notion. We are not  going t o  en te r ta in  discussion on it. 

dould l i k e  t o  meet w i t h  counsel a f t e r .  

We were on sect ion - -  we were on the  request f o r  

Zonfidential i t y ,  Section I X .  

MR. STONE: Commissioner, I j u s t  note t h a t  we have - 
the l a s t  document l i s t e d  i n  Section I X ,  there i s  a document 
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?umber now f o r  t h a t  document a t  the  C lerk 's  O f f i ce ,  and also a 

jocument number f o r  the document t h a t  the request pertains t o ,  

i f  you wanted t o  include those two numbers. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We don ' t  have them avai lab le now, 

jo  we? 

MS. STERN: Not t h a t  I am aware o f .  We w i l l  

incorporate the document numbers. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We w i  11 incorporate i t  . Exh ib i t  

l i s t ,  Section X.  

l a t e - f i l e d  i n  addi t ion t o  these. 

I note t h a t  you have a - -  you have got a 

MS. STERN: Yes. It w i l l  be p a r t  o f  Composite 

,xhibi t  1 f o r  s t a f f .  

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Very we l l .  Section X I .  You have 

j o t  a proposed s t i pu la t i on .  

MR. STONE: I don ' t  t h i n k  i t  i s  pe r t i nen t  t o  t h i s  

proceeding. You can remove t h a t  language unless somebody i s  

prepared t o  waive cross. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Judging from the  - -  
MR. STONE: I c a n ' t  waive cross on witnesses I 

haven't seen ye t ,  but  - - 
COMMISSIONER BAEZ: We w i l l  leave t h a t .  

MS. STERN: Under proposed s t i pu la t i ons ,  we can 

delete the one t h a t  i s  there now, bu t  there had been some 

discussion about s t i p u l a t i n g  t o  Issues 12 and 13, I believe, 

t ha t  Gulf  would b r i ng  any modif icat ions i n  the  PPA before the  
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Commission f o r  approval and any changes i n  p r i ce .  Issues 12 

and 13. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Ms. Stern, we are not  prepared t o  

s t i pu la te  t o  those issues. 

MS. STERN: Okay. I s  the p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  Gul f  i s  

w i l l i n g  t o  s t i pu la te  t o  those issues s t i l l  on the  tab le? 

MR. STONE: Again, we are  t r y i n g  t o  make i t  c lea r  t o  

the Commission t h a t  we w i l l  not  make changes t h a t  you don ' t  get  

a chance t o  see. And t h a t  p r i ce  changes t h a t  r e s u l t  from the  

operation o f  the contract  i t s e l f ,  you w i l l  a lso get t o  see 

those. We are t r y i n g  t o  make t h a t  c lear .  I don ' t  t h ink  - -  I 
mean, I don ' t  know why i t  i s  t h a t  we c a n ' t  reach a s t i pu la t i on ,  

but  we have t r i e d  t o  make t h a t  c lear .  We are not  p lay ing  games 

w i th  you. And so whatever i t  i s  t ha t  i s  preventing us from 

s t i pu la t i ng ,  i t ' s  not  on our par t .  

MS. KAUFMAN: Well, I guess t h a t  i s  d i rec ted  t o  me. 

There you go. The reason t h a t  we cannot s t i p u l a t e  t o  those 

provis ions i s  t ha t  we don ' t  t h ink  tha t  t h a t  i s  what the  

contract  provides. We t h i n k  the contract  provides otherwise. 

And we th ink  t h a t  t h a t  i s  something the Commission i s  going t o  

need t o  look a t  i n  t h i s  case. 

MS. STERN: Okay. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Very we l l .  No agreement. We 

have got Gu l f ' s  motion pending. Section X I I I .  

MR. STONE: That was our no t i ce  o f  i n t e n t  t o  use 
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Zonfidential informat ion and our proposed procedure f o r  deal ing 

rJith i t  i n  accordance w i th  the order on procedure. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: I j u s t  rea l i zed  we took it out  o f  

I rder ,  but  counsel f o r  pa r t i es  w i l l  discuss i t  outside the  

iear ing.  Any changes t o  Section X I V ?  A l l  r i g h t .  

Anything fu r the r ,  S t a f f ?  

MS. STERN: NO. 

COMMISSIONER BAEZ: Hearing nothing e lse,  we are 

adjourned. Thank you a l l .  

(The prehearing conference concluded a t  11:08 a.m. 1 
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